
JOURNAL OF POLICE COMMISSION PROCEEDINGS 

Civic Center, 2 Park Drive South, City Commission Chambers 

August 29th, 2022 - - 9:00 AM 
 

 

Page 1 of 7 

 

 

CALL TO ORDER: 10:00AM                                                            

 

ROLL CALL/STAFF INTRODUCTIONS: Police Commission members present: Morgan Kasuske, 

John Hackwith, and Tim Shanks.  Also present were Lt. Doug Mahlum.   

 

 PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS 

 None. 

 

OLD BUSINESS 

1. APPROVE August 10th, 2022 MEETING MINUTES.  

Commissioner Kasuske moved, seconded by Commissioner Hackwith to accept the minutes from 

the August 10th, 2022 meeting.    

 

Motion carried 3-0 

 NEW BUSINESS 

1. POLICE COMMISSION’S EXAMINATION OF APPLICANTs: OSCAR D’LASSALAS, 

DAKOTA LUGO, AND ZACHARY HATTAN, FOR THE POLICE FORCE – GREAT 

FALLS POLICE DEPARTMENT. 

 

Lt. Mahlum stated that the applications of Oscar D’lassalas, Dakota Lugo, and Zachary Hattan had 

been referred to the Police Commission.  Pursuant to Mont. Code Ann.  §7-32-4154, this meeting 

is an examination of the applicant as to their age, legal, mental, moral, and physical qualifications 

and their ability to fill the office as a member of the police force.   

 

Lt. Mahlum read the provisions of Mont. Code Ann. § 7-32-4151, that sets forth the role of the 

Police Commission; reviewed each item provided to the Commission members in their meeting 

packets; and, read the provisions of Mont. Code Ann. § 7-32-303, qualifications of law 

enforcement officers.  He explained that this meeting is for the Police Commission to review the 

documentation, conduct the examination of each applicant, and make a determination as to whether 

each applicant meets the qualifications of a law enforcement officer.     

 

He read the provisions of Mont. Code Ann. § 2-3-203(3).  He asked the applicant’s position with 

regard to right to privacy.  Applicants D’lassalas, Lugo, and Hattan all asserted their rights to 

privacy. 

 

Lt. Mahlum noted that there is substantial value in having the examination confidential to have a 

frank and open discussion with the applicants and to gain an accurate view of qualifications to 

determine their ability to fill the office as a member of the police force.  Lt. Mahlum determined 

that each applicant’s individual privacy clearly exceeded the merits of public disclosure, and closed 



JOURNAL OF POLICE COMMISSION PROCEEDINGS 

Civic Center, 2 Park Drive South, City Commission Chambers 

August 29th, 2022 - - 9:00 AM 
 

 

Page 2 of 7 

 

the meeting for the Commission to conduct each applicant’s examination in executive session. 

At 9:10 AM members of the Commission and Lt. Mahlum, met in executive session in the City 

Commission Chambers for the purpose of the Commission conducting the examination of 

applicants, Oscar D’lassalas, Dakota Lugo, and Zachary Hattan.     

 

-  -EXECUTIVE SESSION - - 

 

Applicant Oscar D’lassalas 

*Session began at 0910 hours and concluded at 0919 hours 

Commissioner Hackwith began the session by telling Oscar his resume was impressive.  Oscar 

thanked him for this.  

 

Commissioner Hackwith asked Oscar if he enjoyed the Air Force while at Malmstrom.  Oscar 

stated it was a culture shock at first but enjoyed it.  He hadn’t originally planned on coming back 

to Montana but he and his wife decided it was the best place to raise their kids.  

 

Commissioner Hackwith shared with Oscar that when he was in the Navy he had an argument with 

a co-worker about black ice as they didn’t seem to understand the weather differences of Montana.   

 

Commissioner Shanks stated he didn’t have a lot of questions for Oscar, but provided him with a 

scenario where he, Oscar, had witnessed an officer stealing something and asked how he’d handle 

this situation.  Oscar stated he would confront the officer, and go to their supervisor as well.  

Commissioner Shanks then asked the same scenario but it changed it to Oscar witnessing a 

supervisor stealing.  Oscar stated he again would confront the supervisor and report it to their 

supervisor.   

 

Commissioner Shanks again gave Oscar a scenario where Oscar had made a potential DUI stop 

and quickly learned the driver was a Captain with the GFPD and asked how Oscar would handle 

it.  Oscar stated he would notify his supervisor and continue with the investigation as needed.   

 

Commissioner Shanks asked Oscar why he had chosen to work in Great Falls.  Oscar explained his 

wife was from Great Falls and her family still lived here.  Also, he stated he understands Great 

Falls as he’s lived here before.  Mostly, it was a family decision to move closer to family to help 

he and his wife raise their children.   

 

Commissioner Shanks asked Oscar about an Articl-15 he had received while in the Air Force and 

what had happened.  Oscar stated he had been in a group setting studying with each other and it 

was common knowledge they used each other’s notes on the assignment.  However, after the fact 

he was called into a formal setting and accused of plagiarism.  He didn’t understand the process or 

how the complaint had become formal so he immediately requested formal legal counsel.  He 

received a reduction in pay and busted rank.  Commissioner Shanks asked how long Oscar had 

stayed in the USAF after this had taken place and Oscar stated he separated within months 



JOURNAL OF POLICE COMMISSION PROCEEDINGS 

Civic Center, 2 Park Drive South, City Commission Chambers 

August 29th, 2022 - - 9:00 AM 
 

 

Page 3 of 7 

 

afterwards.   

 

Commissioner Kasuske stated he had spoken with a colleague of his in the U.S. Marshal’s Service, 

located in Florida and told D’lassalas he had come highly recommended.   

 

Commissioner Hackwith asked D’lassalas a hypothetical question, If you were given an order that 

violates a person’s constitutional rights what would you do?   

 

Oscar stated his response would be a stiff no if he was confident enough to do so, but he knew he 

would not violate anyone’s constitutional rights.   

 

Oscar’s Executive Session concluded at 0919.   

 

Applicant Dakota Lugo 

*Session began at 0921 hours and concluded at 0933 hours 

 

Commissioner Shanks opened the session asking Lugo how she liked being a dispatcher.  Lugo 

stated she loved working as a dispatcher but believes she could do more.  Commissioner Shanks 

commended Lugo on dispatch being a stepping stone for her and confirmed it provided her with a 

lot of knowledge on the CCSO and GFPD Operations.   

 

Commissioner Shanks provided Lugo with a hypothetical situation where she had witnessed her 

FTO steal something while on a call and asked her how she would handle this.  Lugo stated she 

would address this immediately with her FTO and also report it to a supervisor as well.  

Commissioner Shanks followed up interchanging the FTO with a supervisor.  Lugo stated she 

would handle it the same.   

 

Commissioner Shanks then asked Lugo how she would handle making a suspected DUI stop only 

to realize the driver was a Captain with the GFPD.  Lugo stated she would contact her supervisor 

and handle it like any other DUI stop.  Commissioner Shanks asked if she’d be concerned about 

any pressure from the Captain and Lugo stated she would not be.  Commissioner Shanks asked 

what if it was the Chief of Police.  Lugo stated they’d all be the same as she didn’t feel anyone 

should receive special treatment.   

 

Commissioner Shanks took the situation further and asked if it would matter if was a sibling of 

hers.  Lugo stated she wasn’t overly close to her siblings but would recuse herself if necessary.   

 

Commissioner Hackwith asked a hypothetical question about receiving an order from a supervisor 

that directly violated somebody’s constitutional rights.  He asked Lugo how she would handle it.  

Lugo stated she’d stick to her integrity and would address the supervisor and explain how the order 

wasn’t right.   

 



JOURNAL OF POLICE COMMISSION PROCEEDINGS 

Civic Center, 2 Park Drive South, City Commission Chambers 

August 29th, 2022 - - 9:00 AM 
 

 

Page 4 of 7 

 

Commissioner Hackwith asked Lugo what she would do if she witnessed an officer assault a citizen 

or use more force than necessary.  Lugo stated she would stop the event and address the officer and 

also take the issue to a supervisor.  

 

Commissioner Kasuske asked Lugo how she was going to handle shift work with her husband 

being a deputy and her working shifts.  Lugo stated they already deal with this while she’s a 

dispatcher, and they rely heavily on their family.   

 

Commissioner Kasuske asked Lugo if she and her husband were prepared for her being gone to the 

Academy for three months.  Lugo stated their family is aware and willing to help them out.  

 

Commissioner Kasuske asked Lugo where she saw herself in 20 years with the GFPD.  Lugo stated 

she wants to be on the streets and proactive.  Eventually, she hopes to become a Special Victim’s 

Unit Detective.   

 

Commissioner Kasuske explained to Lugo that Detective was not a rank and cautioned her to keep 

promotions in mind and not to sell herself short.   

 

Commissioner Shanks furthered this by explaining the different ranks available at the GFPD and 

recommended she take the opportunities to promote as they arose.  He told her she needed to go as 

far as she could in the 20 years she would be employed.  He told her to not be afraid of moving to 

other bureaus and positions as they become available.   

 

Commissioner Hackwith stated he made the mistake of not wanting to promote while with the 

Highway Patrol and soon people were promoting over him.   

 

Commissioner Shanks told Lugo that Patrol Sergeant was a great position in the GFPD.  He also 

told her to consider Chief of Police when the time came.   

 

Lugo’s executive session concluded at 0933.   

     

Applicant Zachary Hattan 

*Session began at 0934 hours and concluded at 0949 hours 

   

Commissioner Shanks expressed that he was impressed with Zach having been on his own at such 

a young age.  He further explained that while at the Montana Law Enforcement Academy there 

was going to be opportunity to get in trouble and cautioned Hattan to not engage in activities he 

would regret and the last thing he’d want to do is to be involved in something that would get him 

called into the Captain’s Office.  

 

Hattan thanked Commissioner Shanks and stated he understood.   

 



JOURNAL OF POLICE COMMISSION PROCEEDINGS 

Civic Center, 2 Park Drive South, City Commission Chambers 

August 29th, 2022 - - 9:00 AM 
 

 

Page 5 of 7 

 

Commissioner Shanks further related he recalled an officer who was in the Academy who tried to 

get an under aged girl into a bar and another who argued with the Chief of Police.  He urged Hattan 

to do well and to make good decisions.  

 

Commissioner Shanks provided Hattan with a hypothetical situation asking him what he would do 

if while on training he witnessed his FTO steal something in front of him and asked how he would 

handle it.  Hattan stated he would address it with the FTO and also report it to a supervisor.  

Commissioner Shanks asked what he’d do if the FTO told him to be quiet.  Hattan stated he would 

still report it the same.   

 

Commissioner Shanks provided another Hypothetical and asked Hattan how he would handle a 

DUI stop where he learned the suspected DUI driver was a Captain at the GFPD.  Hattan stated it 

would obviously be a conflict of interest and would most likely request the CCSO or MHP to 

handle the stop.   

 

Commissioner Shanks stated it would also be important to let a supervisor know.  Commissioner 

Shanks further explained his son is an officer with the Helena Police Department and this scenario 

had actually happened before.  

 

Commissioner Hackwith furthered Commissioner Shanks’ question and asked what Hattan would 

do if the driver was a political figure or even the Mayor.  Hattan stated he’d contact a supervisor 

and handle as needed.   

 

Commissioner Hackwith asked Hattan how he would handle a situation where he was given an 

order that would directly violate somebody’s constitutional rights.  Hattan stated he wouldn’t be 

keen about going against an order and hoped that wouldn’t happen, but definitely would not want 

to violate somebody’s rights.   

 

Commissioner Hackwith explained to Hackwith that when he would be taking the oath he would 

be taking an oath to support the constitution and to keep that in mind.  

 

Commissioner Kasuske asked Hattan if he liked writing reports.  Hattan stated that as a Detention 

Officer he was required to write reports and did not mind them.   

 

Commissioner Kasuske commented to Hattan that he had earned an awesome opportunity starting 

this career so young and that he had a good head on his shoulders and cautioned him to not be lead 

astray while at the Law Enforcement Academy.  He encouraged him to perform at the Academy 

and to buckle down during FTO.   

 

Hattan stated he understood and thanked Commissioner Kasuske.   

 

Commissioner Kasuske went further and advised Hattan that Helena PD was not going to give any 



JOURNAL OF POLICE COMMISSION PROCEEDINGS 

Civic Center, 2 Park Drive South, City Commission Chambers 

August 29th, 2022 - - 9:00 AM 
 

 

Page 6 of 7 

 

of the academy recruits any slack and explained that 4 or 5 recruits in his own class had been booted 

out for poor behavior.   

 

Hattan explained that his last two ride-along(s) with GFPD officers had also given him some insight 

into this.   

 

Commissioner Shanks explained to Hattan that the GFPD had invested a lot in him at this point 

and explained to him it was important he never lie about anything he may become involved in and 

be honest and own all of his actions.  Commissioner Shanks explained how officers can become 

Brady disqualified to give testimony.   

 

Hattan replied he’s been told that if you lie you die in regard to your employment.   

 

Commissioner Shanks asked Hattan how he liked working for S&H Aluminum.  Hattan stated he 

enjoyed the physical work, but knowing he was wanting to get into law enforcement he decided to 

take a position on the jail to gain more experience.   

 

Commissioner Hackwith told Hattan that at 20 years old he was receiving a huge opportunity.  

Hackwith stated he had applied at 21 years of age and wasn’t mature enough.   

 

Commissioner Shanks asked Hattan where he saw himself going in his career and Hattan stated he 

would go as high as he could possibly go.   

 

Commissioner Shanks followed up with Hattan recommending he take all opportunities and to try 

everything he could and to test for rank every chance he had.   

 

The Executive Session came to close at 9:49 AM.   

  

The meeting reconvened in an open meeting in the City Commission chambers at 9:50 AM.   

 

Lt. Mahlum summarized the Commission’s examination of the applicants for the police force; that 

the Commission reviewed the backgrounds of the applicants; and, that Oscar D’lassalas, Dakota 

Lugo, and Zachary Hattan, meet the age, legal, mental, moral and physical qualifications and they 

are eligible to be members of the Great Falls Police Department. 

 

Commissioner Shanks moved, seconded by Commissioner Kasuske, that the Police 

Commission approve of applicants, Oscar D’lassalas, Dakota Lugo, and Zachary Hattan for 

hiring consideration as members of the Great Falls Police Department. 

 

All three Commissioners signed the certificate authorizing Oscar D’lassalas, Dakota Lugo, 

and Zachary Hattan to become a members of the Great Falls Police Department.  

 



JOURNAL OF POLICE COMMISSION PROCEEDINGS 

Civic Center, 2 Park Drive South, City Commission Chambers 

August 29th, 2022 - - 9:00 AM 
 

 

Page 7 of 7 

 

Lt. Mahlum asked if there was any public comment.  Hearing none, Lt. Mahlum asked if there was 

any further discussion among the Commissioners.   

 

There being no further discussion, Lt. Mahlum called for the vote. 

 

Motion carried 3-0.  

 

 

ADJOURNMENT  

 There being no further business to come before the Commission, Commissioner Shanks moved 

to adjourn, seconded by Commissioner Kasuske, to adjourn the meeting of August 29th,  2022 

at 9:53 AM.   

 

Motion carried 3-0.  

_________________________________ 

                                             Lt. Doug Mahlum, Acting Secretary 

 

Minutes Approved: _______________, 2022 

 

 

Minutes approved 9/26/22 Lt. Doug Mahlum, Acting Secretary 


